

HOUSE OF LORDS

European Union Committee

1st Report of Session 2016-17

# Scrutinising Brexit: the role of Parliament

Ordered to be printed 19 July 2016 and published 22 July 2016

Published by the Authority of the House of Lords

#### The European Union Committee

The European Union Committee is appointed each session "to scrutinise documents deposited in the House by a Minister, and other matters relating to the European Union".

In practice this means that the Select Committee, along with its Sub-Committees, scrutinises the UK Government's policies and actions in respect of the EU; considers and seeks to influence the development of policies and draft laws proposed by the EU institutions; and more generally represents the House of Lords in its dealings with the EU institutions and other Member States.

The six Sub-Committees are as follows:

Energy and Environment Sub-Committee **External Affairs Sub-Committee** Financial Affairs Sub-Committee Home Affairs Sub-Committee Internal Market Sub-Committee **Justice Sub-Committee** 

#### *Membership*

The Members of the European Union Select Committee are:

<u>1) The Earl of Kinnoull</u> Lord Liddle Lord McFall of Alcluith Baroness Morris of Bolton Baroness Prashar Lord Selkirk of Douglas

Baroness Kennedy of The Shaws Baroness Suttie Lord Teverson Lord Trees Lord Whitty **Baroness Wilcox** 

#### Further information

Publications, press notices, details of membership, forthcoming meetings and other information is available at http://www.parliament.uk/hleu.

General information about the House of Lords and its Committees is available at http://www.parliament.uk/business/lords.

#### *Committee staff*

The current staff of the Committee are Christopher Johnson (Principal Clerk), Stuart Stoner (Clerk) and George Masters (Committee Assistant).

#### Contact details

Contact details for individual Sub-Committees are given on the website. General correspondence should be addressed to the Clerk of the European Union Committee, Committee Office, House of Lords, London, SW1A 0PW. Telephone 020 7219 5791. Email euclords@parliament.uk.

#### Twitter

You can follow the Committee on Twitter: <u>@LordsEUCom</u>.

# CONTENTS

	Page
Chapter 1: Scrutiny of the negotiations on the UK's withdrawal	
from, and new relationship with, the European Union	3
Introduction	3
Why is parliamentary scrutiny necessary?	3
The shape and timing of the negotiations	4
Scrutiny of all stages of the negotiations	5
Confidentiality and transparency	6
A scrutiny model for Parliament	6
European Union Committee work	8
Conclusion	9
Summary of conclusions and recommendations	10
Appendix 1: List of Members and declarations of interest	12

# Scrutinising Brexit: the role of Parliament

# CHAPTER 1: SCRUTINY OF THE NEGOTIATIONS ON THE UK'S WITHDRAWAL FROM, AND NEW RELATIONSHIP WITH, THE EUROPEAN UNION

#### Introduction

1. On 4 May 2016 we published a report on *The process of withdrawing from the European Union.*<sup>1</sup> In that report, to which we have yet to receive the Government response, we concluded:

"Should the UK decide to withdraw from the EU, the UK Parliament should have enhanced oversight of the negotiations on the withdrawal and the new relationship, beyond existing ratification procedures. We will consider how best to achieve that, should the need arise."

2. The result of the referendum on 23 June 2016 means that what was in May a hypothetical scenario has become a reality: the Government must now negotiate the United Kingdom's withdrawal from the European Union. At the time of writing, the timing and scope of the negotiations are still unclear, as are the objectives that will be sought by the two sides. Nevertheless, it is essential that thought should be given now to the key principles that will underpin parliamentary scrutiny of the negotiations.

#### Why is parliamentary scrutiny necessary?

- 3. The success or failure of the Government's negotiation of the withdrawal from, and new relationship with, the EU will have profound and lasting implications for the United Kingdom. At stake are not only the economic prosperity of the nation, but our international standing and influence, our internal security, and the rights of the millions of EU citizens resident in the UK, and the more than one million UK citizens who live in EU Member States. The implications for the other 27 EU Member States, which have a shared interest in all these areas, are almost equally profound.
- 4. The Government's renegotiation of the terms of the UK's EU membership in late 2015 and early 2016, which led to the agreement of a 'New Settlement' by the European Council on 19 February 2016, was primarily an exercise of executive discretion, undertaken on the basis that the results would be put to the electorate. While we expressed a measure of disappointment at the level of engagement with Parliament in the course of the renegotiation, we understood the Government's reluctance to offer a running commentary.
- 5. The forthcoming negotiations are both immeasurably more important and complex, and fundamentally different in nature. It is inconceivable that they should be conducted without effective parliamentary oversight. Indeed, in a parliamentary democracy we believe it is the right and duty of Parliament to ensure that the negotiations are scrutinised effectively at every stage.

<sup>1</sup> European Union Committee, *The process of withdrawing from the European Union* (11th Report, Session 2015–16, HL Paper 138)

- 6. Moreover, Parliament will have to approve the ratification of the treaties that emerge from the negotiations<sup>2</sup> and to enact the domestic legislation that is necessary to give them effect. It follows that full parliamentary involvement throughout the negotiations will ultimately assist the Government itself, as well as being in the public interest.
- 7. Parliament's role in the forthcoming negotiations on withdrawal from the EU will be critical to their success: ratification of any treaties arising out of the negotiations will require parliamentary approval, while national legislation giving effect to the withdrawal and new relationship will need to be enacted by both Houses.
- 8. Parliament has a duty to scrutinise and hold the Government to account for decisions that will profoundly affect the United Kingdom. It will also be a vital forum for public debate and challenge, on the many issues that will arise in the course of negotiations.
- 9. Finally, effective parliamentary scrutiny will help to ensure that there is an 'audit trail' for future generations.

#### The shape and timing of the negotiations

- 10. The process for withdrawing from the EU is described in Article 50 of the Treaty on European Union (TEU). Article 50(1) states that: "Any Member State may decide to withdraw from the Union in accordance with its own constitutional requirements." Article 50(2) states: "A Member State which decides to withdraw shall notify the European Council of its intention."
- 11. In our report in May 2016 we analysed the two key elements of the ensuing negotiations. The first, and most essential, element will be the negotiation of a withdrawal agreement—the terms of the UK's exit from the European Union. As part of the withdrawal agreement, the parties will have to determine the acquired rights of EU citizens resident in the UK, and of UK citizens resident in the EU.
- 12. The second element will be the negotiation of a new relationship between the United Kingdom and the EU. Article 50 primarily concerns withdrawal, but, as we noted in our previous report, Article 50(2) requires that the withdrawal agreement should "tak[e] account of the framework" for the withdrawing State's "future relationship with the Union".
- 13. We are aware that there has been considerable speculation about the relationship between these two negotiations, with some commentators arguing that decisions on a new agreement will be assigned to a separate and later negotiation. This was not the view of the expert witnesses who gave evidence to us. Indeed, Sir David Edward KCMG, QC, PC, FRSE, a former Judge of the Court of Justice of the European Union, told us that the German language version of Article 50 made plain that the "structure of future relations will already have been established at the point when

<sup>2</sup> Constitutional Reform and Governance Act 2010, <u>Part 2</u> puts parliamentary scrutiny of treaty ratification on a statutory footing and gives legal effect to a resolution of the House of Commons or Lords that a treaty should not be ratified. If the House of Commons considers that the Government should not proceed to ratify a treaty, it can resolve against ratification and thus make it unlawful for the Government to ratify the treaty. The House of Lords is not able to prevent the Government from ratifying a treaty, but if it resolves against ratification the Government has to produce a further explanatory statement explaining why it considers the treaty should be ratified.

withdrawal takes place."<sup>3</sup> Professor Derrick Wyatt QC agreed, suggesting that the two sets of negotiations could be conducted in parallel. We believe the view of our witnesses to be correct as a matter of law.

- 14. The wording in Article 50(2) places a legal obligation on those negotiating the withdrawal agreement to take account of the framework of the new relationship. In other words, the withdrawal negotiations should take place in the knowledge, at the very least, of the likely shape of the UK's future relationship with the EU.
- 15. There can also be no doubt that the parties to the withdrawal negotiation will enjoy discretion, if they decide it is in their mutual interest, to negotiate a new relationship in considerable detail. In principle they could decide that the agreement on a new relationship should come into force immediately upon withdrawal. Such an approach would provide the greatest certainty for both sides.

#### Scrutiny of all stages of the negotiations

- 16. Before the referendum took place, the Prime Minister stated that, in the event of a vote to leave, he would make a formal notification under Article 50 more or less immediately. After the referendum result was announced, however, and at the same time as announcing his negotiation, Mr Cameron stated that the decision on making such a notification would be for his successor.
- 17. The new Prime Minister, the Rt Hon Theresa May MP, in an interview given on 3 July, before her appointment, said that notification under Article 50 "shouldn't be [given] before the end of the year".<sup>4</sup> This raises the prospect that informal 'negotiations' could take place before the Article 50 process is triggered. Although it currently seems unlikely that the European Commission (which is formally responsible under Article 50 for conducting negotiations on withdrawal) would contemplate participation, the Government may try to agree a common approach to a number of key issues in discussion with the other Member States (who, as the European Council, would be responsible for agreeing a negotiating mandate for the Commission).
- 18. We emphasise that the substance of what is under discussion, rather than the formal stage in the withdrawal process, should be reflected in an appropriate level of parliamentary scrutiny. Effective scrutiny, if it is to achieve the objectives we have described, will be essential at all stages, including:
  - during informal discussions prior to notification under Article 50, should they take place;
  - during formal withdrawal negotiations conducted in accordance with Article 50; and
  - during any negotiations on a new relationship, whether these take place before or after the completion of UK withdrawal.

<sup>3 &</sup>lt;u>The process of withdrawing from the European Union</u>, para 31. The German text of Article 50 states that the framework for the future relationship "berücksichtigt wird"—in English, "is considered", or "is taken into account".

<sup>4</sup> The Spectator, 'Full transcript: Theresa May, Peston on Sunday' (3 July 2016): <u>http://blogs.spectator.</u> <u>co.uk/2016/07/full-transcript-theresa-may-peston-sunday/</u> [accessed 20 July 2016]

#### Confidentiality and transparency

- 19. One of the key objectives of parliamentary scrutiny is to ensure transparency to cast a light on the actions of the executive. It is, we suggest, essential that many elements of the forthcoming negotiations—for instance, negotiations affecting acquired rights, or future cooperation between UK and EU police forces—should be conducted transparently.
- 20. At the same time, some of the most important and complex aspects of the forthcoming negotiations on a new relationship will be sensitive, commercially and politically, and will require a high degree of confidentiality. As the European Commission itself has noted, in the context of trade negotiations, "When entering into a game, no-one starts by revealing his entire strategy to his counterpart from the outset".<sup>5</sup>
- 21. It is clear, therefore, that parliamentary scrutiny of the negotiations will have to strike a balance between, on the one hand, the desire for transparency, and on the other, the need to avoid undermining the UK's negotiating position. We note that parliamentary scrutiny has shown itself, in practice, to be highly flexible. The Intelligence and Security Committee of Parliament, though a statutory body rather than a Select Committee, conducts its hearings wholly in private; other Committees, such as the House of Commons Defence Committee, may receive confidential briefings, while private meetings are common across both Houses.
- 22. We acknowledge that certain elements of the forth coming negotiations, particularly those relating to trade, may have to be conducted confidentially. We would expect parliamentary scrutiny of the negotiations to strike an appropriate balance between transparency and confidentiality, while achieving the overarching objective of holding the Government effectively to account.

#### A scrutiny model for Parliament

- 23. We have focused thus far on parliamentary scrutiny, without specifying a particular model for such scrutiny. Our expectation is that both Houses will be fully involved, with regular formal debates, ministerial statements (oral and written), as well as ministerial answers to questions. All of these will play a crucial part in ensuring that Members of both Houses play a full part in overseeing the negotiations.
- 24. There is also a vital role for committee oversight in both Houses. As we have suggested, some aspects of the negotiations may be confidential, and committees provide the flexibility needed to provide effective oversight. More generally, committees, meeting regularly, will provide the required level of detailed and informed scrutiny in more or less real time, also acting as a filter, dealing with matters of routine while bringing issues of greater importance to the attention of the House.
- 25. The House of Commons will of course make its own arrangements for appropriate committee scrutiny. In particular, we are conscious that, following the establishment, on 13 July 2016, of Departments for Exiting the European Union and for International Trade, some restructuring of House of Commons departmental Select Committees may follow.

<sup>5</sup> European Commission, 'Factsheet: Transparency in EU trade negotiations': <u>http://trade.ec.europa.eu/doclib/docs/2013/june/tradoc\_151381.pdf</u> [accessed 20 July 2016]

- 26. We are also aware of suggestions that a Joint Committee might be established to scrutinise the withdrawal negotiations, though we do not believe that such a Joint Committee is necessary. In committee scrutiny, as in the scrutiny of primary legislation, there is a distinct role for the House of Lords as a revising chamber. The House of Lords could bring significant added value, not only through the expertise of many of its Members, but as a result of its long tradition of politically impartial, thoughtful committee scrutiny.
- 27. Our preference would therefore be for a House of Lords Select Committee to scrutinise the UK-EU negotiations as a whole—in other words, both the negotiations on withdrawal and those on a new relationship. We believe that the European Union Select Committee itself is best placed to perform such a role, drawing on input as necessary from its six sectoral sub-committees. In this way, the legal and policy expertise of existing staff, as well as the knowledge and experience of the Members of the European Union Committee, would be put to best use.
- 28. We acknowledge that the European Union Committee, if it were to take on responsibility for scrutinising the negotiations, would need revised terms of reference. At present the Committee is charged with considering European Union documents, along with "other matters relating to the European Union". That emphasis needs to change: a more explicit responsibility for scrutinising the Government's negotiations on withdrawal and on a new relationship, potentially underpinned by a new scrutiny reserve resolution, will be necessary to ensure effective and authoritative scrutiny.
- 29. We also acknowledge that the working practices of the European Union Committee, were it to be charged with this new responsibility, will also have to change. Coordination between sub-committees will need to be enhanced; detailed inquiries will be replaced by shorter, more focused and more reactive projects. These changes are already underway, as we describe below.
- 30. We are also conscious that the resource implications will need to be fully considered. Effecting the UK's withdrawal from the European Union and the implementation of a new relationship will be arguably the most complex, demanding and important administrative and diplomatic task that the Government has undertaken since the Second World War. It is already clear that substantial investment will be needed to recruit and train the civil servants needed to complete this task successfully. It follows that ensuring effective scrutiny of the withdrawal negotiations is now also a strategic challenge for Parliament, including the House of Lords Administration. If the approach we recommend is adopted, the European Union Committee will need additional resources in order to fulfil its work effectively; additional burdens are likely also to fall upon other Departments, including the Library and the Legislation Office.
- 31. We believe that the House of Lords can best contribute to effective parliamentary oversight of the forthcoming negotiations by charging the European Union Committee with explicit responsibility for scrutinising the negotiations. This will require revised terms of reference for the European Union Committee, possibly underpinned by a new scrutiny reserve resolution. We look forward to engaging with the Leader of the House and with domestic committees in developing more detailed proposals in coming weeks.

32. Withdrawal from the EU is arguably the most complex, demanding and important administrative and diplomatic task that the Government has undertaken since the Second World War. Parliament, if it is to undertake its scrutiny role effectively, will need additional resources that are proportionate to the scale of the challenge. We invite the domestic committees of the House to address the question of resourcing as a matter of urgency.

#### European Union Committee work

- 33. Finally, we briefly outline, for information, the current work of the European Union Committee.
- 34. The Committee continues to scrutinise European Union documents, in accordance with its terms of reference, albeit with a particular focus on the significance of documents in the context of UK withdrawal. In so doing, we are responding in part to the fact that the UK will remain a full member of the EU until any withdrawal agreement comes into force, and that it also continues to be bound by EU law. We also acknowledge the Government's assurance that it will continue to deposit all European Union documents, with explanatory memoranda, and that Ministers will continue to take part in discussions in the Council of Ministers, while respecting the Scrutiny Reserve Resolution.
- 35. In addition, the Committee has agreed, in response to the referendum result, a programme of cross-cutting inquiry work, intended to inform the forthcoming negotiations. We have identified a number of key themes:
  - Trade in goods with the EU
  - External trade
  - Financial services
  - Trade in non-financial services
  - Non-tariff barriers to trade
  - Movement of people between the UK and the EU
  - Police and security cooperation
  - Acquired rights
  - Energy security
  - External relations and international development policy
  - Environmental policy and climate change
  - UK-Irish relations
  - Criminal law
  - Civil law
  - Research, universities and students
  - Employment and employees' rights

- Consumer rights
- Agriculture
- Transport (including aviation and road transport)
- Competition and state aid
- Asylum policy
- Taxation
- EU Budget contributions
- Customs Union
- Fisheries
- Non-discrimination
- Judicial governance and the jurisdiction of the CJEU
- Intra-UK relations, and the implications for Gibraltar and the Crown Dependencies
- Interparliamentary and interinstitutional relations.
- 36. Under these thematic headings the Select Committee and its sub-committees will in coming months, pending the formal commencement of negotiations, produce a series of short reports. We shall identify key UK national interests, and weigh up the options for protecting these interests post-withdrawal. Through this programme of work we aim to stimulate informed debate in the House and beyond, supplementing the analysis being undertaken by the new Department for Exiting the European Union, and thereby influencing the Government's negotiating objectives.
- 37. Events are moving quickly. The European Union Committee will, over coming months, continue to respond rapidly and flexibly to such events, and to report issues of importance to the House in a timely fashion.

# Conclusion

38. We make this report for information.

# SUMMARY OF CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

### Why is parliamentary scrutiny necessary?

- 1. Parliament's role in the forthcoming negotiations on withdrawal from the EU will be critical to their success: ratification of any treaties arising out of the negotiations will require parliamentary approval, while national legislation giving effect to the withdrawal and new relationship will need to be enacted by both Houses. (Paragraph 7)
- 2. Parliament has a duty to scrutinise and hold the Government to account for decisions that will profoundly affect the United Kingdom. It will also be a vital forum for public debate and challenge, on the many issues that will arise in the course of negotiations. (Paragraph 8)
- 3. Finally, effective parliamentary scrutiny will help to ensure that there is an 'audit trail' for future generations. (Paragraph 9)

### The shape and timing of the negotiations

- 4. The wording in Article 50(2) places a legal obligation on those negotiating the withdrawal agreement to take account of the framework of the new relationship. In other words, the withdrawal negotiations should take place in the knowledge, at the very least, of the likely shape of the UK's future relationship with the EU. (Paragraph 14)
- 5. There can also be no doubt that the parties to the withdrawal negotiation will enjoy discretion, if they decide it is in their mutual interest, to negotiate a new relationship in considerable detail. In principle they could decide that the agreement on a new relationship should come into force immediately upon withdrawal. Such an approach would provide the greatest certainty for both sides. (Paragraph 15)

# Scrutiny of all stages of the negotiations

- 6. We emphasise that the substance of what is under discussion, rather than the formal stage in the withdrawal process, should be reflected in an appropriate level of parliamentary scrutiny. Effective scrutiny, if it is to achieve the objectives we have described, will be essential at all stages, including:
  - during informal discussions prior to notification under Article 50, should they take place;
  - during formal withdrawal negotiations conducted in accordance with Article 50; and
  - during any negotiations on a new relationship, whether these take place before or after the completion of UK withdrawal. (Paragraph 18)

#### Confidentiality and transparency

7. We acknowledge that certain elements of the forthcoming negotiations, particularly those relating to trade, may have to be conducted confidentially. We would expect parliamentary scrutiny of the negotiations to strike an appropriate balance between transparency and confidentiality, while achieving the overarching objective of holding the Government effectively to account. (Paragraph 22)

#### A scrutiny model for Parliament

- 8. We believe that the House of Lords can best contribute to effective parliamentary oversight of the forthcoming negotiations by charging the European Union Committee with explicit responsibility for scrutinising the negotiations. This will require revised terms of reference for the European Union Committee, possibly underpinned by a new scrutiny reserve resolution. We look forward to engaging with the Leader of the House and with domestic committees in developing more detailed proposals in coming weeks. (Paragraph 31)
- 9. Withdrawal from the EU is arguably the most complex, demanding and important administrative and diplomatic task that the Government has undertaken since the Second World War. Parliament, if it is to undertake its scrutiny role effectively, will need additional resources that are proportionate to the scale of the challenge. We invite the domestic committees of the House to address the question of resourcing as a matter of urgency. (Paragraph 32)

# APPENDIX 1: LIST OF MEMBERS AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

#### Members of the EU Select Committee for the 2016–17 Session

Baroness Armstrong of Hill Top Lord Boswell of Aynho (Chairman) Baroness Brown of Cambridge **Baroness Browning Baroness Falkner of Margravine** Lord Green of Hurstpierpoint Lord Jay of Ewelme Baroness Kennedy of The Shaws The Earl of Kinnoull Lord Liddle Lord McFall of Alcluith **Baroness Morris of Bolton Baroness** Prashar Lord Selkirk of Douglas **Baroness Suttie** Lord Teverson Lord Trees Lord Whitty **Baroness Wilcox** 

#### **Declarations of interest**

Baroness Armstrong of Hill Top

Chair, Changing Lives (a charity based in Tyneside which may benefit from European Union funds)

Member, Advisory Board, GovNet Communications (publisher and event organiser)

Trustee, Africa Governing Initiative Trustee, Voluntary Service Overseas Lord Boswell of Aynho (Chairman)

In receipt of salary as Principal Deputy Chairman of Committees, House of Lords

Shareholdings as set out in the Register of Lords' Interests

Income is received as a Partner (with wife) from land and family farming business trading as EN & TE Boswell at Lower Aynho Grounds, Banbury, with separate rentals from cottage and grazing

Land at Great Leighs, Essex (one-third holding, with balance held by family interests), from which rental income is received

House in Banbury owned jointly with wife, from which rental income is received

Lower Aynho Grounds Farm, Northants/Oxon; this property is owned personally by the Member and not the Partnership

Baroness Brown of Cambridge

Vice Chancellor of Aston University (to September 2016): significant research income, ERDF Funding from EU. Large number of EU (non-UK) staff and students. EIB Loan

Former Governing Board member of the European Institute for Innovation & Technology

**Baroness Browning** 

Chair of the Advisory Committee on Business Appointments

Baroness Falkner of Margravine

Member, Advisory Board, Cambridge YouGov Stone (market research and events agency)

Member, British Steering Committee: Koenigswinter, The British-German Conference

Vice President, Liberal International: The International Network of Liberal Parties

Member, Advisory Board, British Influence Member, Advisory Board, Demos

Ownership of a house in Italy, jointly owned with member's husband Non-Executive Director, Hyde Group

Member, House of Lords Foreign Policy Network

Lord Green of Hurstpierpoint

Shareholdings as set out in the Register of Lords' Interests Chair, Advisory Council for the Centre for Anglo-German Cultural Relations, Queen Mary University, London

Member, Advisory Board of the Centre for Progressive Capitalism

Member, Steering Group, Sabanci University Centre for Excellence in Finance, Istanbul

Member, Akbank International Advisory Board, Istanbul (remunerated with an attendance fee which the Member donates to a registered charity) Chair, Natural History Museum

Lord Jay of Ewelme

Trustee (Non-Executive Director) Thomson Reuters Founders Share Company Chairman, Positive Planet (UK)

Vice Chairman, Business for New Europe

Member, Senior European Experts Group

Patron, Fair Trials International

Baroness Kennedy of The Shaws

Chair, Justice

Earl of Kinnoull

Executive Consultant, Hiscox Group (insurance)

Trustee, Blair Charitable Trust (running of Blair Castle and estate; a farm subsidy is received under the EU farm subsidy scheme)

Trustee, Red Squirrel Survival Trust and Director of associated private company (in receipt of EU funds)

Director, Horsecross Arts Limited (Perth) and trustee of related registered charity (in receipt of EU funds)

Member of Supervisory Board, Fine Art Fund Group funds

Farmland and associated cottages in Perthshire from which rental income is received and a farm subsidy is received under the EU farm subsidy scheme Shareholdings in Hiscox Ltd and Schroders PLC (fund management)

Lord Liddle

Chair, Policy Network and Communications Ltd (think-tank)

Co-author of a report which the City of London Corporation commissioned Policy Network to write on developments in thinking on the regulation of financial services in the European Union

Personal assistant at Policy Network carries out secretarial work which includes work in relation to the member's parliamentary duties

Lord McFall of Alcluith

Director, Alcluith Limited (trading entity for Member's advisory and other professional services)

Public Interest Member, Council of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland (ICAS) Deputy Chair, Banking Standards Review Council (BSRC) (interest

ceased 12 February 2016)

Member, Advisory Board, Systemic Risk Company (SRC)

Member, Advisory Board, Policy Scotland (University of Glasgow)

Member, Lloyds Banking Group Grants Committee for the Lloyds Banking Group Credit Union Development Fund

Baroness Morris of Bolton

President, World Travel Market Advisory Council Chairman of the Governance Group for the Register of Providers of Cosmetic Injectable Treatments

Chairman of the Centre for Islamic Finance

Consultant, TES Global Advisory Board (TES Global Ltd, publisher of the TES and THE amongst other things)

President, National Benevolent Institution

Co-chair, Women in Public Policy

Vice President (formerly Chairman), Conservative Middle East Council (interest as Chairman ceased 31 May 2016)

Baroness Prashar

Deputy Chair, British Council

Lord Selkirk of Douglas

Director, Lennoxlove House Limited (remunerated as a Director) Chairman of Directors, and Director, Douglas-Hamilton (D Share) Ltd (small family company: agriculture and property; the Member's financial interest derives from his directorship, which is now paid as an annual sum above the registration threshold)

President, Scottish Veterans' Garden City Association (national charity) Chairman, Scottish Advisory Committee, Skill Force (national charity)

#### **Baroness Suttie**

Associate with Global Partners Governance Limited in respect of their Foreign and Commonwealth Office contract to provide mentoring and training for parliamentarians and their staff in Jordan Trustee, Institute for Public Policy Research (IPPR)

Campaign Council Member, British Influence

Lord Teverson

Director, KCS Trade Print Ltd (card & label products)

Director, Wessex Investors Ltd

Director, Wessex Hotel Operators Limited (interest ceased 27 April 2016) Director, KCS Holdings Ltd

Director, Anchorwood Developments Limited (property)

Board member, Marine Management Organisation

Trustee, Regen SW (renewable energy agency for South West England)

Board Member, Policy Connect (think-tank)

#### Lord Trees

Chair, Moredum Research Institute, Edinburgh (independent animal health research institute) which applies for competitive research grants from the EU Whitty

### Lord Whitty

President, Road Safety Foundation Chair, Chesshire Lehmann Fund President, Environmental Protection UK Member, GMB Vice President, Local Government Association Vice President, Chartered Institute for Trading Standards Baroness Wilcox Shareholdings as set out in the Register of Lords' Interests

A full list of Members' interests can be found in the Register of Lords Interests: <u>http://www.parliament.uk/mps-lords-and-offices/standards-and-interests/</u> <u>register- of-lords-interests/</u>